
 

WTRY Broadcast Schedule Regular Meetings, Wednesday, 6:00 p.m. and 11:00 p.m. Study Meetings, Wednesday, 3:00 p.m. 

 PLANNING COMMISSION 

 MEETING AGENDA 

SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING 

 
 

Michael W. Hutson, Chair, and Mark Maxwell, Vice Chair 
Donald Edmunds, Tom Krent, Philip Sanzica, Robert M. Schultz 

Thomas Strat, John J. Tagle, and Lon M. Ullmann 

   

May 24, 2011 7:30 P.M. Council Board Room 
   

 
1. ROLL CALL 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

3. MINUTES – May 10, 2011 Regular Meeting 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 
 

5. ZONING BOARD OF ZONING (ZBA) REPORT 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
8. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 186 A) – Proposed Sunset 

Plaza CVS Pharmacy Drive-Through, Northeast Corner of Long Lake and Livernois 
(125 E. Long Lake), Section 10, Currently Zoned Neighborhood Node M District 
(Controlled by Consent Judgment) 

 
STUDY ITEM 

 
9. POTENTIAL REVISION - PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN APPROVAL (File Number SP 

921) – Briggs Park Condominium, East side of Rochester, North side of Lamb, Section 
14, Currently Zoned RT (One Family Attached Residential), EP (Environmental 
Protection) and R-1C (One Family Residential) Districts 

 
OTHER ITEMS 

 
10. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 
 
ADJOURN 
 
 
NOTICE: People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 

contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov or by calling (248) 524-3317 at least two working 
days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 

500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, MI  48084 
(248) 524-3364 
www.troymi.gov 

planning@troymi.gov 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us


PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MAY 10, 2011 
  
 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Hutson at 7:30 p.m. on May 10, 2011, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Philip Sanzica 
Michael W. Hutson 
Tom Krent 
Mark Maxwell 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-05-024 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Sanzica 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-05-025 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the April 26, 2011 Special/Study meeting as 
published. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MAY 10, 2011 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEWS 

 
5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 343 D) – Proposed Site 

Improvements, North Side of Big Beaver, West of Crooks (1500 W. Big Beaver), 
Section 20, Zoned O-1 (Low Rise Office) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-05-026 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
WHEREAS, The applicant submitted the Preliminary Site Plan Approval application 
prior to the adoption of the comprehensively rewritten Zoning Ordinance, therefore the 
now-repealed Zoning Ordinance provisions shall apply. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to 
Section 03.40.03 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed site 
improvements for 1500 W. Big Beaver, located on the north side of Big Beaver and west 
of Crooks, in Section 20, within the O-1 zoning district, be granted, subject to the 
following conditions: 
 
1. The establishment of a cross access easement in the northwest corner of the 

property to the property to the north and all necessary documentation as required by 
the City. 

2. No existing trees shall be removed from within the Big Beaver right of way. 
3. If either of these conditions is not agreed to, this item shall be returned to Planning 

Commission. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

6. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 968) – Proposed Suburban 
Cadillac Buick, North of Maple, West of Crooks (1810 Maplelawn), Section 29, Zoned M-1 
(Light Industrial) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-05-027 
Moved by: Maxwell 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
WHEREAS, The applicant submitted the Preliminary Site Plan Approval application 
prior to adoption of the comprehensively rewritten Zoning Ordinance, therefore the now-
repealed Zoning Ordinance provisions shall apply. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MAY 10, 2011 
  
 
 

3 
 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to 
Section 03.40.03 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed site 
improvements for Suburban Cadillac Buick, located north of Maple, west of Crooks, at 
1810 Maplelawn, in Section 29, within the M-1 zoning district, be granted, subject to the 
following conditions: 
 
1. A detailed square footage calculation provided to the Planning Consultant. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN 
REVIEW (File Number SU 387) – Proposed Maple Plaza Renovations (McDonald’s 
Restaurant with Drive-Thru Facility), Northwest Corner of Maple and Livernois (72 W. 
Maple), Section 28, Zoned B-2 (Community Business) District 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Louis Marcucci, 93 Forthton, Troy, spoke in opposition. 
 
For the record, there are three written communications on file. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-05-028 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
WHEREAS, The applicant submitted the Preliminary Site Plan Approval application 
prior to the adoption of the comprehensively rewritten Zoning Ordinance, therefore the 
now-repealed Zoning Ordinance provisions shall apply. 
 
RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the number of 
required parking spaces for the proposed Maple Plaza Renovations, including a 
McDonald’s Restaurant with Drive-Thru Facility, to 110 when a total of 154 spaces are 
required on the site based on off-street parking space requirements, as per Article XL.  
This 44-space reduction is justified through a parking analysis in a report prepared by 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan 
Approval for the proposed Maple Plaza Renovations, including a McDonald’s 
Restaurant with Drive-Thru Facility, located at the northwest corner of Maple and 
Livernois, Section 28, within the B-2 zoning district, be granted, subject to the following 
conditions: 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT MAY 10, 2011 
  
 
 

4 
 

1. All parking lot lighting shall be shielded to prevent spillage onto adjacent property 
owners. 

2. A note shall be applied to the drawing indicating “eating in vehicles shall be 
prohibited”. 

3. All parking stalls perpendicular to sidewalks shall be reduced to a depth of 17 feet to 
increase the sidewalk width to 7 feet, and the landscape area adjacent to the south 
right of way shall be increased by 2 feet and the parking stalls reduced by 17 feet. 

 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

STUDY ITEMS 
 

8. POTENTIAL REZONING AND DEVELOPMENT PROJECT – East Side of Stephenson, 
North of Fourteen Mile (455 Stephenson), Section 35, Currently Zoned RC (Research 
Center) District 
 

9. POTENTIAL DEVELOPMENT PROJECT – Potential Tim Horton’s Restaurant, Northwest 
Corner of Square Lake and Dequindre (43003 Dequindre), Section 1, Currently Zoned NN 
(Neighborhood Node) District 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 

 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:28 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
       
Michael W. Hutson, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2011 PC Minutes\Draft\05-10-11 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 



  PC 2011.05.24 
  Agenda Item # 8 
 

DATE: May 18, 2011 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 186 A) – Proposed 

Sunset Plaza CVS Pharmacy Drive-Through, Northeast Corner of Long Lake 
and Livernois (125 E. Long Lake), Section 10, Currently Zoned 
Neighborhood Node M District (Controlled by Consent Judgment) 

 
 
The applicant, NORR, LLC, submitted the above referenced Preliminary Site Plan Review 
application.  The applicant is proposing adding a drive-through window for the existing 
CVS Pharmacy at the south side of the existing building. 
 
The property is zoned Neighborhood Node “M”; however, it is controlled by a Consent 
Judgment which allows the property to be used and occupied for those uses permitted in 
the B-2 zoning district, under the repealed Zoning Ordinance.  The B-2 designation allows 
for drive-through windows for non-restaurant uses provided that the special conditions set 
forth in Section 21.25.01 are met.  Another provision of the Consent Judgment is that the 
document does not need to be amended for “minor modifications to the site plan…so long 
as Troy and plaintiffs consent in writing”.  The judgment does not define what constitutes a 
“minor modification”.  Given that the abutting property to the east is residential, the addition 
of a drive-through window is more than just a “minor modification”.  Therefore, CVS needs 
to go through the Preliminary Site Plan Approval process with Planning Commission (for a 
recommendation), then the Site Plan and Amended Consent Judgment must be approved 
by City Council. 
 
The attached report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. summarizes the 
application.   
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Report prepared by CWA 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ SP 186 A 
 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 186 A  Sunset Plaza Shopping Plaza  Sec 10\SP-186A Sunset Plaza 05 24 11.docx 



 

 

 
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 

 
 

8. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 186 A) – Proposed Sunset Plaza 
CVS Pharmacy Drive-Through, Northeast Corner of Long Lake and Livernois (125 E. 
Long Lake), Section 10, Currently Zoned Neighborhood Node M District (Controlled by 
Consent Judgment) 

 
 

Proposed Resolution # PC-2011-05- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends that Preliminary 
Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Article 8 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for 
the proposed Sunset Plaza CVS Pharmacy Drive-Through, located on the Northeast 
Corner of Long Lake and Livernois (125 E. Long Lake), in Section 10, within the 
Neighborhood Node Form-Based Zoning District, controlled by Consent Judgment be 
(granted, subject to the following conditions): 
___________________________________________________________) or  
 

(denied, for the following reasons: _________________________________) or 
 

(postponed, for the following reasons:_________________________________) 
 

 

Yes:  
No:  
Absent:  
 
MOTION CARRIED / DENIED 

 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 186 A  Sunset Plaza Shopping Plaza  Sec 10\Proposed Resolution  SP 186 A 05 24 11.docx 



SUNSET PLAZA, 125 E LONG LAKE

5/11/2011

Legend

1: 2,131

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1780355 355Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Ponds and Basins

Streams and Creeks

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:Band_1

Green:Band_2

Blue:Band_3



SUNSET PLAZA, 125 E LONG LAKE

5/11/2011

Legend

1: 2,131

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1780355 355Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Form Based Zoning (Current)

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(CF) Community Facilities District

(EP) Environmental Protection District

(BB) Big Beaver Road

(MRR) Maple Road

(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)

(CB) Community Business

(GB) General Business

(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District

(O-1) Office Building District

(OM) Office Mixed Use

(P) Vehicular Parking District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(RT) One Family Attached Residential District

(MR) Multi-Family Residential

(MHP) Manufactured Housing

(UR) Urban Residential

(R-C) Research Center District

(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales

Ponds and Basins

Streams and Creeks

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:Band_1

Green:Band_2

Blue:Band_3



 

Richard K. Carlisle, President      R. Donald Wortman, Vice President       Douglas J. Lewan, Principal      John L. Enos, Principal 
Sally M. Elmiger, Associate    David J. Scurto, Associate    Brian M. Oppmann, Associate    Zachary Branigan, Associate 

 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: Brent Savidant 
 
FROM: Zachary Branigan 

DATE: May 20, 2011 
 
RE: CVS Drive-Through, 125 East Long Lake Road 
 
 
We are in receipt of a submittal for an amendment to a consent judgment to allow the addition of 
a drive-through window facility at an existing CVS store on Long Lake Road.  Given the limited 
nature of the project, we are providing a more focused review in a memorandum format. 
 
The existing CVS store is part of the Sunset Plaza development, and is located at 125 East Long 
Lake Road, on the northeast corner of Long Lake Road and Livernois Road.  The project was 
permitted as part of a consent judgment.  The current zoning, however, is Neighborhood Node 
District, Site Type A, Street Type A (Node M).  In the Neighborhood Node Form-Based District, 
drive-through facilities are permitted in Use Group 6 under special use permit when the site is 
classified as Site Type A, Street Type A.  However, given the status of this project as a part of a 
consent judgment, the Planning Commission is only obligated to make a recommendation to City 
Council with regard to the project. 
 
We have reviewed the project with regard to circulation, site design, parking, landscaping, 
screening, and the general provisions of the Ordinance.  Given the limited nature of this proposal 
as an amendment to the existing consent judgment and an addition to an established shopping 
center, we have not provided comments on the overall existing development, only those issues 
surrounding the proposed changes.  We have the following comments: 
 
Circulation and Stacking 
 
The proposed configuration of the drive-through is awkward.  As designed, drivers would be 
forced to cross the oncoming traffic in the maneuvering lane heading west from the east entrance 
towards the main parking area.  Further, there are two proposed windows (which we understand 
are for separated drop-off and pick-up functions), both of which exit next to one another and 
would presumably produce south-turning traffic movements.  This double-loaded right turn area 
may cause conflicts as adjacent cars pull into the southbound traffic lane towards the site exit to 
Long Lake Road. Further, we are concerned that the only separation from the oncoming traffic is 
a striped area immediately south of the drive-through lanes.  We suggest, at a minimum, that 



CVS Drive-Through Request 
May 20, 2011 

 2 

additional directional striping be added to the maneuvering lanes to further establish the turning 
movements into the drive-through and that the striped island be replaced with a curbed landscape 
island to formally separate the maneuvering lanes from the drive-through lanes. 
 
We also suggest that the separated drive-through windows be consolidated into a single window.  
While we recognize that the CVS preference is for two separate windows for drop-off and pick-
up, we also understand that the traffic volume for these windows is exceptionally small and 
therefore a single window should suffice. We feel that the consolidation of these drive-through 
lanes into a single lane will alleviate some of our concern with regard to existing vehicles, and 
with vehicle conflicts entering the lanes. 
 
We are also concerned that the proposed location for the barrier-free spaces may be in conflict 
with the proposed approach to the drive-through lanes.  Vehicles wishing to use these spaces 
could become trapped by stacked cars using the drive-through or, at a minimum, be a hazard to 
vehicles attempting to cross the maneuvering lane and enter the drive-through lanes.  We suggest 
the barrier-free spaces be relocated to the west side of the building by redesigning existing 
conventional parking spaces. 
 
Drive-Through Facility Standards 
 
Section 6.10 establishes a series of requirements for all drive-through facilities.  Section 6.10.A 
states that: “Drive-through facilities shall be designed in a manner which promotes pedestrian 
and vehicular safety.” As noted above, we are concerned that the proposed design does not meet 
this criterion.   
 
Further, Section 6.10.B states that: “Single-lane drive-throughs may be located at the side of a 
building. Multiple-lane drive-throughs shall be located in a manner that will be the least visible 
from a public thoroughfare.” As noted above, the proposed facility includes two lanes.  These 
lanes are proposed in a location where they would be most visible to Long Lake Road.  For 
circulation purposes, our recommendation is that the lanes be reduced to a single lane.  
Compliance with this recommendation would also result in compliance with Section 6.10.B.   
 
Finally, and also as noted above, Section 6.10.C.3, in Table 6.10, requires four stacking spaces 
per lane, which this proposal as designed does not meet.  We are comfortable with fewer spaces, 
given the confined location, provided that the applicant reduces the number of lanes to a single 
lane and justifies the proposed number of stacking spaces.  That said, if the lanes are 
consolidated and the barrier-free spaces are relocated as recommended, then sufficient area may 
exist to meet the minimum four-space standard. 
 
Landscaping and Screening 
 
The new drive-through facility would point at an existing single-family residential area.  This 
area is already adjacent the shopping center, but would now also be subjected to the cars queuing 
in the drive-through lanes.  There is an existing wall at this location; however, we are concerned 
that the wall does not provide a desirable or sufficient screening alternative given the increased 
intensity.  Table 13.02-B, Landscape Screening Schedule, in Section 13.02.B, requires screening 



CVS Drive-Through Request 
May 20, 2011 

 3 

alternative 3 (established in able 13.02-A and Figure 13.02-C) and/or a wall between any Use 
Group 6 use and a residential area.  Alternative 3 requires one large evergreen tree for every 10 
linear feet and one narrow evergreen for every 5 linear feet. 
 
While a wall does exist at this location, walls are intended to be used as a last resort for screening 
under the new Ordinance landscaping provisions.  Section 13.02.B.3 states that: “Where a land 
use activity creates noise, light, dust or other similar nuisance that cannot be effectively screened 
by a landscape buffer, a solid opaque wall or fence may be required. Such wall or fence shall be a 
minimum of six (6) and a maximum of eight (8) feet in height as measured on the side of the 
proposed wall having the higher grade.” Section 13.02.B.4 goes on to add: “A combination of 
landscaping and a solid opaque wall or fence may be approved where such a combination provides 
more effective screening.”  We feel the removal of parking spaces along the east property boundary 
adjacent the drive-through exit to allow for an enhanced screen incorporating the existing wall and 
the elements of screening alternative 3 would be a significant improvement in this critical area. 
 
Other requirements 
 
An existing water main is located directly beneath the proposed drive-through canopy.  The City 
Engineering Department has stated that the water main must be relocated and provided a new 
easement, and that the existing easement must be abandoned.   
 
Recommendation 
 
We do not object to the provision of a drive-through window for the existing CVS store.  Drive-
through pharmacy windows are a new typical element to pharmacy establishments, and have 
been included on new pharmacy facilities throughout Michigan. We are confident that, given a 
series of amendments to the site plan, a drive-through could be a compatible addition to this 
existing site and could help the existing store continue to thrive in Troy.  However, the project 
cannot be approved as currently designed.  At a minimum, the following recommendations 
should be incorporated into the site plan: 
 
1. The drive-through lanes must be consolidated into a single lane to permit a drive-through 

facility clearly visible from a major thoroughfare (Section 6.10.B) 
2. Additional directional striping must be added to the maneuvering lanes to further 

establish the turning movements into the drive-through. 
3. The striped island should be replaced with a curbed landscape island to formally separate 

the maneuvering lanes from the drive-through. 
4. Four stacking spaces must be provided for each drive-through lane proposed (although 

only one lane is permitted in a location visible from a major thoroughfare, as noted 
above).  Alternatively, we are open to the applicant providing documentation justifying a 
reduced number of stacking spaces. 

5. The proposed barrier-free spaces must be relocated, preferably to the west side of the 
building, to eliminate potential conflicts with the drive-through. 

6. An enhanced screen incorporating the existing wall and the elements of screening 
alternative 3 should be added to the east property boundary, potentially be removing 
spaces along the east boundary wall near the drive-through exit. 



CVS Drive-Through Request 
May 20, 2011 

 4 

7. The existing water main must be relocated and provided a new easement, and that the 
existing easement must be abandoned. 

 
Until these elements are addressed we cannot support the proposed drive-through.  We 
recommend the Planning Commission discuss these issues with the applicant.  If the applicant is 
willing to make changes to address the issues noted herein, the Planning Commission may elect 
to postpone action on the recommendation to City Council until such time as a revised plan is 
provided.  Alternatively, the Planning Commission may wish to make an affirmative 
recommendation, conditioned on the applicant revising the plans to address these issues.  Or, if 
the applicant is unwilling to redesign the proposed addition, the Planning Commission may elect 
to pass a recommendation of denial to City Council.  
 
Please do not hesitate to contact us with any questions, comments, or concerns. 
 
Sincerely,  
 

 
 
 











  PC 2011.05.24 
  Agenda Item # 9 

 

 
DATE: May 17, 2011 
 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: POTENTIAL REVISION - PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN APPROVAL (File Number 

SP 921) – Briggs Park Condominium, East side of Rochester, North side of Lamb, 
Section 14, Currently Zoned RT (One Family Attached Residential), EP 
(Environmental Protection) and R-1C (One Family Residential) Districts 

 
 
Briggs Park Condominium received Preliminary Site Plan Approval from the Planning 
Commission on December 13, 2005.  Final Site Plan Approval was granted administratively on 
September 28, 2006.  The approved layout included 54 units within 16 buildings, comprised of a 
combination of attached 3-unit and 4-unit buildings.  To date, only 12 units have been 
constructed. 
 
The applicant intends to redesign the site to replace 42 proposed attached units (in 12 buildings) 
with 35 unattached units.  This would result in a decrease of 7 units on the site.  The proposed 
setback of the units from the street and perimeter property lines would not change.  The area of 
the site upon which the residential units are located is zoned RT, which permits detached 
residential dwellings.  The sketch provided appears to comply with RT provisions, although a 
detailed review has not been conducted at this time. 
 
The Master Plan classifies this area as Rochester Road: Green Corridor. 
 
The applicant believes the detached units will be more marketable than the attached units, and 
seeks feedback from the Planning Commission on this matter. 
 
Please be prepared to discuss this item at the May 24, 2011 Special/Study meeting. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps 
2. Site information, provided by applicant 
3. City of Troy Master Plan (excerpt) 

 
cc: Applicant 
 File 
 
 
G:\SITE PLANS\SP 921 Briggs Park Condominiums Sec 14\Potential Revision\Briggs Park PC Memo 05 24 11.docx 
 



Briggs Park Condominium

5/17/2011

Legend

1: 2,019

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1680336 336Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Ponds and Basins

Streams and Creeks

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:Band_1

Green:Band_2

Blue:Band_3



Briggs Park Condominium

5/17/2011

Legend

1: 2,019

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

1680336 336Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75

Road Centerline

Major Road

Industrial Road

Local Road

Form Based Zoning (Current)

(PUD) Planned Unit Development

(CF) Community Facilities District

(EP) Environmental Protection District

(BB) Big Beaver Road

(MRR) Maple Road

(NN) Neighborhood Nodes (A-U)

(CB) Community Business

(GB) General Business

(IB) Integrated Industrial Business District

(O-1) Office Building District

(OM) Office Mixed Use

(P) Vehicular Parking District

(R-1A) One Family Residential District

(R-1B) One Family Residential District

(R-1C) One Family Residential District

(R-1D) One Family Residential District

(R-1E) One Family Residential District

(RT) One Family Attached Residential District

(MR) Multi-Family Residential

(MHP) Manufactured Housing

(UR) Urban Residential

(R-C) Research Center District

(PV) Planned Vehicle Sales

Ponds and Basins

Streams and Creeks

Parcels

Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:Band_1

Green:Band_2

Blue:Band_3



















103

CITY OF TROY MASTER PLAN

CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

Rochester Road: 

Green Corridor

Regional model for a green corridor• 
A strong focus on access management• 
Heightened emphasis on strong stormwater • 
management techniques
Retail catering to regional traffi  c• 
Innovative site design techniques applied • 
through PUD use to allow for redevelopment 
for shallow lots

Rochester Road carries high volumes of traffi  c 
causing backups at intersections.  The abutting 
development pattern from Big Beaver Road 
north to Long Lake Road is a continuous row of 
highway-oriented commercial uses.  North of 
Long Lake Road, the land use pattern evolves, 
becoming a mix of commercial and offi  ce near 
the intersections and older single-family homes 
and multiple-family complexes in between.     

If Rochester Road is to have a defi ned 

role and pleasing character in the City, it 

must undergo a signifi cant transformation 

over time.  Ultimately, the Rochester Road 
Corridor will become a regional showcase 
for eff ective stormwater management and 
enhancement of the natural environment, while 
encouraging a combination of high-quality 
land uses.   Eff ective landscaping focused on 

native plantings, and improved land use and 
access management along Rochester will create 
a green corridor that provides a high level 
of service for motorists, and which provides 
an eff ective natural buff er between high 
traffi  c volumes and people visiting adjacent 
properties.  The creation of this green corridor 
would occur primarily in the right-of-way along 
road frontages and in the median of a future 
boulevard.  

While the emphasis on innovative 

stormwater management is specifi cally called 

on for the Rochester Road Corridor, new 

low-impact techniques are to be encouraged 

elsewhere throughout the City of Troy.  As 
noted in Chapter 7, innovative stormwater 
management is a priority for the community.  
Rochester Road will play an important role in 
this City-wide initiative by proving a regional 
showcase for such techniques.

New construction along the corridor may 
include detention and retention basins 
that work together from site-to-site with 
other features to create a continuous, linear 
landscape feature.  By connecting properties, 
the basins create visual relief from traffi  c.  
Low impact development methods will 

be used throughout the corridor to fi lter 

stormwater runoff .   Rochester Road will also be 
characterized by eff ective new signage, high-
quality lighting, and eff ective, complementary 
site and architectural design. 

Uses along Rochester Road will include a 
variety of mixed uses, established in a “pulsing” 
pattern where the most intense mixed-use or 
exclusively non-residential development will 
occur near the Neighborhood Nodes situated 
along its main intersections.  Lower-impact 
uses, such as small scale retail or condominiums 
should be encouraged along the corridor 
frontage between these nodes.

ROCHESTER ROAD



104 CHAPTER 9: LAND PATTERNS

DESIGN CONCEPT

Commercial strip development should be • 
limited and gradually replaced with mixed 
use.

Commercial development should be • 
encouraged to expand in the form of dense 
multi-story mixed-use concentrations 
at major intersections.  Concentrations 
are limited to within 1,000 feet of the 
intersection.  

The areas between nodes should develop as • 
lower-rise offi  ce and multiple-family.    The 
height diff erences encourage a visual “pulse.”

SITE DESIGN ATTRIBUTES

Parking areas should be within rear yards • 
or interior parts of the site.  A single row of 
parking may be appropriate in front and 
exterior side yards in limited applications.

Parking will connect to adjacent sites, • 
eventually linking several developments 
with a rear access lane.  The number of 
drives connecting to Rochester Road should 
be minimized.

Defi ned internal walks will connect the • 
businesses and buildings together.

Internal walks will be connected to the • 
public sidewalk system.

Buildings will be separated from street traffi  c • 
by a greenbelt or sculptural storm water 
detention basin. 

Height and size of signage will be reduced • 
to contain visual clutter.

BUILDING DESIGN ATTRIBUTES

The height at nodes will be multi-story not • 
exceeding four stories.       

The height between nodes should not • 
exceed two stories.

Ground level stories should be, at a • 
minimum, twelve feet in height; with large 
expanses of transparent glass at intersection 
nodes.  

Fenestration for the ground level of • 
buildings in nodes will be accentuated 
through the use of awnings, overhangs or 
trim detailing.  

Design for a Rain Garden in Troy; City of Troy

Lovell Pond in Troy; an example of an innovative, urban 
stormwater basin; Photo by Jennifer Lawson


	1. ROLL CALL
	2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	3. MINUTES – May 10, 2011 Regular Meeting
	May 10, 2011 Regular Meeting Draft Minutes

	4. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda
	5. ZONING BOARD OF ZONING (ZBA) REPORT
	6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT
	7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT
	8. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 186 A)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Proposed Resolution
	Aerial Map
	Zoning Map
	Planning Consultant Report
	Site Plan

	9. POTENTIAL REVISION - PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN APPROVAL (File Number SP 921)
	Planning Department Memorandum
	Aerial Map
	Zoning Map
	Site Information, provided by Applicant
	Master Plan Excerpt




